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Note: The Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) Research Program received two or more similarly worded questions 

regarding some of the topics addressed in the Q&A below. To avoid duplicating responses, some of the original language 

used in the questions may have been modified or merged with language in similar questions.  

Responses to General RFP Questions 

Question: The RFP lists a "qualified peer reviewer" requirement - could you expand on the definition of that role? 

Answer: A qualified peer reviewer should be specialist with prior research experience in the field of study who was 

not actively involved in the contracted research nor in development of the draft report. 

Question: Is graduate student tuition an allowable expense to include in our budget? 

Answer: Yes, if a graduate student is a member of the contract research team, the cost of their tuition is an eligible 

expense under FHWA funding requirements. 

Question: Please provide the scoring method and/or sub-weighting for the 20% pricing component of the Evaluation 

Criteria. 

Answer: The proposal with lowest overall cost will receive all available points in this evaluation category and other 

proposals will receive points proportional to the cost relative to the low-cost proposal as illustrated below. 

 

Question: Are the kickoff and closeout meetings required to be in person? Or can they be virtual? 

Answer: The kickoff and closeout meeting can be either in-person or virtual. If the researchers opt for in-person 

meetings, then any necessary travel costs must be included in the budget submitted. 

Question: Are there any formatting requirements (font type, font size, single spacing or double spacing, margins, etc.)?  

Is there a template or previous examples of submitted applications that can be used as a template? 

Answer: Please use font size 11 or greater, otherwise there are no requirements. 

Question: Does the 10-page limit include the cover page or table of contents? 

Answer: The 10-page limit does not include the cover page or table of contents. A cover page and table of contents+ 

10 pages of proposal content is admissible.  

Question: Should resumes and any attachments showing previous research history be submitted as part of the PDF or 

can they be submitted as separate files? 

Answer: Resumes and attachments should be submitted as part of a single proposal PDF package. Please do not 

submit them as separate files. You may include links to web or server hosted files in the proposal PDF if you would 

prefer attachments to be separate. 

Question: Is there a limit on the attached file(s) sizes? 

Proposal 

Cost

Percent 

of Total 

Points

Score 

Received

Proposal A $150,000 100.0% 200

Proposal B $160,000 93.8% 188

Proposal C $180,000 83.3% 167

Proposal D $190,000 78.9% 158

Proposal E $200,000 75.0% 150



Answer: The Idaho Transportation Department email server permits receipt of file sizes up to 45 MB. If the proposal 

is larger than the Department email file size limit, the proposer may set up a web- or cloud-based file sharing 

protocol, but the file sharing platform must be capable of recording a timestamp when the file was uploaded to 

ensure the proposal was submitted by the deadline on February 10th, 2023 at 5pm MST. 

Question: Does ITD accept proposal submission as a zipped folder containing several files? 

Answer: No, the proposal should be contained in a single PDF. You may include links to web or server hosted files in 

the proposal PDF if you would prefer attachments to be separate. 

Question: Does ITD have any cap on the Indirect Rate (e.g., 25%) for the released list of projects? And if there is no cap 

on the overhead that, can the research team submit a proposal with a project budget above the total project cost listed 

in the RFP provided it is reasonable and justified in the work plan? 

Answer: Idaho Universities are limited to charging 20% overhead per Idaho State Board of Education policy (see 

item 3). Other public universities are limited to the federally approved overhead rate for their institutions. The 

project budget listed in the RFP is the estimated maximum amount for the anticipated work as determined by ITD. If 

the proposers estimated cost for completing the work outlined in the RFP exceeds the maximum amount listed in 

the RFP, the proposed work can be modified to fit within the budget. Proposers should identify their modifications 

to the scope of work that are the result of budgetary constraints.  

Question: If there are statutory restrictions precluding a State research institution from following ITD’s specific 

insurance provisions listed in the RFP, can there be any exceptions to these provisions? 

Answer: The requirements listed in the Insurance Provisions in Attachment 1 to the RFP are intended for private 

business entities.  Public universities and entities are expected to provide comparable coverage that comports with its 

respective state law limitations.  Any requested modifications to the Standard Contract Terms and Conditions, including 

Insurance Provisions, should be identified in the proposal.  

Question: What is the process if two institutions are planning to collaborate on the same project? 

Answer: The proposal process is the same if two institutions are planning to partner on the project and wish to 

submit a collaborative proposal. In this instance, we encourage proposers to clearly define project team personnel 

and their respective duties in the collaborative proposals. 

ASR Mitigation RFP Questions and Responses 

Question: Under Task 5, it states “All test must be conducted in a qualified laboratory by a qualified personnel. 

Certifications must be provided upon request.” Does qualified laboratory include university concrete materials research 

labs and if so, what certification does ITD require? 

Answer: Proposers are asked to include information in their proposal demonstrating that they have appropriate 

laboratory facilities and personnel to perform the required testing for this study. Section 200.00 of ITD’s Laboratory 

Operations Manual specifies that laboratories: 

• Develop and implement a quality management system 

• Employ individuals qualified to perform the laboratory testing 

• Utilize testing equipment that is appropriately calibrated. 

Proposers can demonstrate qualifications by certification through AASHTO’s Re:source Program or a similar 

program, or by providing documentation of the items bulleted above. 

Question: In Task 5, "Conduct the following standard tests on all experimental concrete mixes of reactive Idaho 

aggregate with different types of admixtures from the selected categories." There are 11 standard tests listed in the RFP. 

Are all 11 tests required in our proposed work scope? Or these 11 tests are just for our reference and we can select a 

https://boardofed.idaho.gov/board-policies-rules/board-policies/financial-affairs-section-v/v-n-grants-and-contracts-02-2012/
https://boardofed.idaho.gov/board-policies-rules/board-policies/financial-affairs-section-v/v-n-grants-and-contracts-02-2012/
https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/Apps/manuals/LabOps/LabOps_Lab_Qualification.pdf
https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/Apps/manuals/LabOps/LabOps_Lab_Qualification.pdf
http://www.aashtoresource.org/


few of them? We ask this question because the listed "ASTM 227" has been withdrawn by ASTM with no replacement 

(link). Furthermore, "ASTM C1293" is a long-term test that takes 2 years. Does the 2-year ITD project term fit this test? 

Answer: The literature review (Task 2) will examine and summarize relevant test methods to ensure that the 

appropriate tests are performed. The final list of tests to be conducted may be modified based on literature review 

summary and concurrence with ITD and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) working on the project. Considering 

the timeline to complete the ASTM C1293 test, the project duration should be extended to 30-36 months. Although 

the project duration requires an extension from what was listed in the RFP, the project budget cannot be increased. 

Question: In Section 2.1, Goal description: 

a) Two ASR reducing mineral admixtures: 

1. Diatomaceous Earth (DE) 

2. Natural Pozzolans (NP) 

b) Three commercially available nano-silica admixtures (NS) 

Does that mean for DE, NP, and NS, we should test 3 options in each of them? So, it counts as 3X3=9 categories of tests, 

including three types of DE, types of NP, and types of NS, correct? 

Answer: As discussed in the RFP, testing details will be determined through coordination with the Technical Advisory 

Committee on the project following literature review. RFP Task 3 states that ITD will select two to three in each 

category for further investigation.  

Question: A variety of reactive aggregate samples must be shipped to the co-PI. Can we budget some material shipping 

costs for this project? 

Answer: Cost of shipping samples should be included in the budget as part of your proposal. Samples within Idaho 

can be shipped free of charge to ITD District Offices for pick up by researchers.  

Geotechnical Asset Management for Rock Slopes and Rockfall Risk Assessment in Idaho RFP 

Questions and Responses 

Question: We understand that ITD estimates there are approximately 1,940 miles of rock slopes that require assessment 

for rock fall potential.  

a) Does ITD have an estimate for the actual number of slopes that require geotechnical investigation?  

b) What type of unstable problems exist at these slopes?  

c) Are the unstable slopes to be evaluated limited to primarily rock, or do the unstable slope slated for assessment 

include mass wasting problems such as soil & rock mix landslides, soil failures, debris flows, loess deposits, etc.? 

Answer:  

a) An inventory conducted for a previous project identified approximately 950 sites prone to at least minor 

rockfall problems. Among these, nearly 200 were given a severity rating that indicated frequent or 

hazardous debris on roadway often requiring immediate attention. 

b) Instability at these sites may be due to lack of rock mass structural competency, erosion, differential 

erosion, freeze thaw action and weathering, or a mix of mechanisms and other factors, including poor cut 

slope design, heavy precipitation events, and lack of stabilizing vegetation. 

c) Unstable slopes are not limited to rock slopes. While rockfall is the most frequent hazard, slope assessments 

will also include sites with a history of mass wasting or erosion. 

Question: Are there other types of constructed mitigation measures (i.e., geotechnical assets such as rock fall fences, 

gabions, wire drape, pinned mesh, rock anchors, etc.) to be reviewed and included in the database as part of this 

project? 

https://www.astm.org/standards/c227
https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/apps/research/Completed/RP142.pdf


Answer: Yes, geotechnical assets that include mitigation measures presently in place should be reviewed and 

catalogued. Review of these existing mitigation measures should include evaluation of present condition and 

apparent effectiveness. 

Question: What is the existing ITD database referred to in the RFP that currently tracks rockfall, and what format will 

this database be provided in? 

Answer: ITD does not have a standardized database for rockfall tracking. Each of ITD’s six District offices presently 

uses a different method for documenting rock slopes and rockfall hazard ratings. A database and rating system 

called HiSIMS (Highway Slope Instability Management System) was previously developed by ITD in conjunction with 

contracted researchers, but it was never fully adopted because of a lack of quality data and it is presently 

unsupportable within ITD’s data systems and software configuration. The goal of the present project is to develop a 

statewide database that will integrate with ITD’s current geospatial data platform and to establish a consistent 

rating system for rock slope hazards, including decision making tools to prioritize mitigation activities. 

Question: The iPLAN is a platform composed of ESRI web apps. Will the maintenance costs associated with hosting data, 

web apps, web maps, etc. be absorbed by the state during development and after development, or will this cost be 

incorporated within the budget of the project work? In addition, will development be performed using ITD ESRI accounts 

or private accounts? 

Answer: ITD will be responsible for costs related to hosting data and developing web apps, etc., provided that any 

new tools are compatible with the existing iPLAN platform and the ESRI licenses presently held by the Department. 

Access to ITD’s ESRI ArcGIS online accounts will be provided to contractor through an Access Agreement with the 

Idaho State Office of Information Technology Services. However, the cost of the ArcGIS desktop application, and any 

required licensing will be the responsibility of the contract research team. 

Question: In Task 7, is the Contractor expected to offer an onsite training program in each of the six districts, or can 

multiple districts be combined for the onsite training? 

Answer: While this may be possible, traveling between ITD’s districts requires several hours and may not be 

financially practical for ITD given the cost of travel and size of training groups from each District. For the purposes of 

preparing your proposal, use all six districts for onsite training visits in your estimate. The researcher will be 

responsible for planning, with coordination from ITD staff, to ensure that the on-site training location is appropriate, 

and all necessary staff are included in the training.  

Question: In Task 7, will ITD staff have access to iPads or tablets for performing data collection? 

Answer: Yes, ITD can provide at least seven iPads and two Android tablets. While we don’t presently know the exact 

number of tablets available for use, there may be more available at the time of training. 

Question: In Task 8 and Deliverable 7 – please clarify if “recommendations for mitigation projects” will include any 

design details, or just a method of project prioritization/selection? 

Answer: While we are not expecting detailed construction designs for rock slopes that require mitigation, 

researchers should prioritize sites requiring mitigation, identify recommended mitigation strategies at these sites, 

and provide estimates of design and construction costs for performing mitigation work at each site. 

Combining In-Situ and Remote Sensing-Based Monitoring Methods to Improve the Efficiency 

and Accuracy of Landslide Monitoring Activities in Idaho RFP Questions and Responses 

Question: Will ITD provide processed data from their existing in-situ monitoring instruments at landslides selected by 

the research team? 

https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/apps/research/Completed/RP142.pdf


Answer: Yes, ITD will provide processed data from inclinometers and vibrating wire piezometers for the sites 

presented in Exhibit 1, Table 1 of the RFP. These sites are also displayed in the iPLAN layer available at the following 

URL - https://iplan.maps.arcgis.com/home/item.html?id=79949c9b03ea46d6ad7cd02d278e3cdd. 

Question: Can the landslides selected for monitoring be geographically concentrated? 

Answer: Depends on what is meant by geographically concentrated. If it means landslides are located within a 

reasonable driving distance of each other, then yes, provided that the locations are considered suitable candidates 

per consultation with the project TAC (e.g., instrumented sites that display recent/current movement). If 

geographically concentrated entails selection of landslides outside of ITDs instrumented sites, possibly. Only 

instrumented landslide locations presented in the iPLAN layer are deemed viable within in ITD’s existing data 

constraints.  

Question: Will ITD provide the specifications of their in-house UAV system, to help ensure the ultimate research 

recommendations will be applicable to ITD’s system? 

Answer: ITD’s UAS program is relatively new and currently being developed. ITD will share existing and expected 

future capabilities of the program, including staffing, available equipment, software platforms, and data systems. 

However, use of ITD’s UAS’s will not be available to researchers. If other more capable UAS equipment and sensors 

would be needed to support future monitoring efforts, it would be helpful if these were provided as 

recommendations in the final report. 

Question: Is ITD expecting data collection with multiple sensor types in Task 5: Field Data Gathering? 

Answer: Yes. ITD is expecting collection of any appropriate and useful data types to be collected that are attainable 

within the project budget. 

Question: Will ITD obtain any necessary access permissions for UAV LiDAR surveys and control during the course of the 

study? 

Answer: If access permission is required to conduct any remote sensing surveys or other field work for this project, 

ITD will obtain the necessary permission. With advanced coordination with ITD project manager, ITD may also be 

able to secure control points for LiDAR surveys, or identify existing control points, but this cannot be guaranteed 

until survey locations have been selected.  

 

https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/Apps/research/RFP_RemoteSensing.pdf
https://iplan.maps.arcgis.com/home/item.html?id=79949c9b03ea46d6ad7cd02d278e3cdd

